
Victorian Heritage Database Report Report generated 20/07/24

CHIMNEY, BLUESTONE MILL

CHIMNEY &amp;
BLUESTONE MILL SOHE
2008

CHIMNEY &amp;
BLUESTONE MILL SOHE
2008

CHIMNEY &amp;
BLUESTONE MILL SOHE
2008

1 bluestone mill mill street
mortlake property view
aug1993

bluestone mill mill street
mortlake chimney aug1993

bluestone mill mill street
mortlake end wall aug1993

bluestone mill mill street
mortlake front view aug1993

Location

MILL STREET MORTLAKE, MOYNE SHIRE

Municipality

MOYNE SHIRE

Level of significance

Registered



Victorian Heritage Register (VHR) Number

H0323

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO11

VHR Registration

October 9, 1974

Heritage Listing

Victorian Heritage Register

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - October 27, 2004

What is Significant?

A windmill erected in Mortlake c1857 was the first structure built for the Mount Shadwell Mill. From 1859 a steam
mill was operated on the fourteen acre site by the firm of Aikman, Hamilton and Geddes. The extant bluestone
mill building was probably built at this time and the bluestone chimney soon after this date. The mill was operated
by Aikman and Geddes from 1870, with Aikman becoming the sole owner in 1880. The site then remained in the
ownership of the Aikman family for another seventy years.

Milling slowed after wheat growing moved north in the 1870s and, together with the concurrent introduction of
roller milling technology, the construction of flour mills was affected, with some mills expanding or converting to
the new technology. Those of the south west generally did not respond in this way and the Mortlake Mill typically
retained its stone grinding method of milling. From the 1870s the flour milling section of the Mortlake Mill business
declined, however milling of various kinds, mostly for feed, was undertaken and reportedly continued sporadically
until the 1940s. From the 1860s other businesses were also conducted from the Mortlake Mill, including the
selling of building materials.

In c1956 a subdivision by the Soldier Settlement Commission reduced the size of the Mortlake Mill site. In 1996
the Mill site passed into community ownership.

The existing bluestone complex includes a main mill building and adjoining annexe, and a chimney. A number of
outbuildings constructed on the site have since been removed, including a two storey bluestone annexe to the
north of the mill building. Engine mountings, a well and a wrought iron tank from the early period of the steam
mill, remain. Although all the machinery has been removed from the mill building, there is a considerable amount
of remaining evidence of the original stone milling process still in place. Two bluestone cottages associated with
the mill and built in the 1860s remain on another site.

How is it significant?

Mortlake Mill is of historical and architectural significance to the State of Victoria.

Why is it Significant?

Mortlake Mill is of historical significance due to its association with the important and early phase of flour milling
technology based on stone grinding. This method of milling was employed from the establishment of the colony to
the 1870s, when roller milling technology became common. Sufficient intact fabric exists to demonstrate the
process and working conditions of the industry in this period. It is one of the most intact mills in terms of the
retention of evidence of the milling process and is a typical mill type of this era.



Mortlake Mill is of historical significance due to its association with the important development of the wheat
industry in south western Victoria. From the late 1850s to the early 1870s, this was a major wheat producing area
in the State and the establishment of such small mills, close to the source of supply, is illustrative of the industry
which developed. Mortlake Mill is the most intact of the flourmills built in the region during this period.

Mortlake Mill is of historical significance as part of a precinct of substantial bluestone buildings built in the town,
which demonstrate the growth of the township in the second half of the nineteenth century.

The Mortlake Mill chimney is of architectural significance as a carefully detailed, finely finished and well
proportioned example of a nineteenth century industrial chimney. It is one of the few chimneys remaining from a
mid nineteenth century flourmill, particularly of bluestone construction.

Permit Exemptions

General Exemptions:

General exemptions apply to all places and objects included in the Victorian Heritage Register (VHR). General
exemptions have been designed to allow everyday activities, maintenance and changes to your property, which
don’t harm its cultural heritage significance, to proceed without the need to obtain approvals under the Heritage
Act 2017.

Places of worship: In some circumstances, you can alter a place of worship to accommodate religious practices
without a permit, but you must notify the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria before you start the works or
activities at least 20 business days before the works or activities are to commence.

Subdivision/consolidation: Permit exemptions exist for some subdivisions and consolidations. If the subdivision or
consolidation is in accordance with a planning permit granted under Part 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 and the application for the planning permit was referred to the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria as a
determining referral authority, a permit is not required.

Specific exemptions may also apply to your registered place or object. If applicable, these are listed below.
Specific exemptions are tailored to the conservation and management needs of an individual registered place or
object and set out works and activities that are exempt from the requirements of a permit. Specific exemptions
prevail if they conflict with general exemptions.

Find out more about heritage permit exemptions here.

Construction dates 1857, 

Heritage Act Categories Registered place, 

Other Names FLOUR MILL,   MORTLAKE MILL,  

Hermes Number 853

Property Number

History

A windmill erected in Mortlake c1857 was the first structure built for the Mount Shadwell Mill. From 1859 a steam
mill was operated on the fourteen acre site by the firm of Aikman, Hamilton and Geddes. The extant bluestone

https://application-hub.app.planning.vic.gov.au/hv/createForm/EDNotificationHV
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mill building was probably built at this time and the bluestone chimney soon after this date. The mill was operated
by Aikman and Geddes from 1870, with Aikman becoming the sole owner in 1880. The site then remained in the
ownership of the Aikman family for another seventy years.

Milling slowed after wheat growing moved north in the 1870s and, together with the concurrent introduction of
roller milling technology, the construction of flour mills was affected, with some mills expanding or converting to
the new technology. Those of the south west generally did not respond in this way and the Mortlake Mill typically
retained its stone grinding method of milling. From the 1870s the flour milling section of the Mortlake Mill business
declined, however milling of various kinds, mostly for feed, was undertaken and reportedly continued sporadically
until the 1940s. From the 1860s other businesses were also conducted from the Mortlake Mill, including the
selling of building materials.

In c1956 a subdivision by the Soldier Settlement Commission reduced the size of the Mortlake Mill site. In 1996
the Mill site passed into community ownership.

Extent of Registration

Shire of Mortlake. No.323. Chimney, Bluestone Mill, Mill Street, Mortlake.
[Victoria Government Gazette No 100 Wednesday, October 9 1974 p.3650]

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

